
Meeting Minutes
THE REGULAR MEETING of the PLANNING BOARD of the Town of Cortlandt was conducted at the Town Hall, 1 Heady St., Cortlandt Manor, NY on Tuesday, September 5th, 2017.  The meeting was called to order, and began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

Loretta Taylor, Chairperson presided and other members of the Board were in attendance as follows:




Thomas A. Bianchi, Board Member 




Steven Kessler, Board Member




Robert Foley, Board Member 

Jeff Rothfeder, Board Member

Peter Daly, Board Member 

Jim Creighton, Board Member

ALSO PRESENT:




John J. Klarl, Esq., Deputy Town Attorney
 



Michael Preziosi, Deputy Director, DOTS



Chris Kehoe, Deputy Director for Planning


*



*



*
CHANGES TO THE AGENDA
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated there were no changes to the agenda tonight.


*



*



*
ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS OF AUGUST 1, 2017 
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I’m going to call for the adoption of the minutes from last month, August 1st.  
So moved, seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated on the question, I submitted to Chris.

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
CORRESPONDENCE:

PB 1-11      a.
Letter dated July 28, 2017 from Brad K. Schwartz, Esq. requesting the 4th six-month time extension of Preliminary Plat approval for the Hanover Estates Subdivision located on Croton Avenue.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I believe we have a Resolution for that Mr. Kessler.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairman, I move that we adopt Resolution 18-17 approving the extension.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 13-05    a.
Letter dated August 3, 2017 from David Steinmetz, Esq. requesting the 5th 90-day time extension of Final Plat approval for the Mill Court Crossing Subdivision located at the south end of Mill Court.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have a Resolution for that as well Mr. Daly.

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 20-17 in favor of granting the time extension.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated 19.

Mr. Peter Daly stated okay, it’s 19.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated 19-17.

Mr. Peter Daly stated sorry I got them mixed up.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ll correct it to be Resolution 19-17.

Mr. Peter Daly stated 19-17.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 12-94    c.
Letter dated August 21, 2017 from Tom Eikhof, Regional Property Manager of Acadia Realty Trust, requesting Planning re-approval for the parking of U-Haul vehicles and rental cars behind Building C at the Cortlandt Town Center.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated Resolution for that as well.
Mr. Robert Foley stated Madame Chair I make a motion that we adopt Resolution #20-17.

Seconded.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated just on the question, just for the record, as we discussed at the work session, we’ll no longer require the applicant to come back every year.  He’ll be monitored by Code Enforcement and if there are any problems we’ll deal with it in that manner.

With all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*



*
PUBLIC HEARINGS (NEW):

PB 2017-14 a. Public Hearing - Application of  The Swider Family Irrevocable Trust, for the property of William Holstein, for the re-approval of a Special Permit for an Accessory Apartment as per Chapter 307-45 of the Town Code for property located at 260 Furnace Dock Road. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing.  If you wish to – are you the applicant?
Mr. William Holstein responded I’m Mr. Holstein.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated if you are a person who’s come here to comment on this, you can come up after Mr. Holstein finishes talking and identify yourself and your residence and tell us what you want to say about this particular application.  But Mr. Holstein you can go ahead.

Mr. William Holstein stated good evening and hello Jeff.  I didn’t know you were on this board.  My wife and I have enjoyed living in Cortlandt Manor these past seven and a half years but as we enter our late 60s we are – I’m personalizing this issue because it is personal, it’s about people’s lives.  We need to move to some place that’s a bit more civilized and a bit easier.  We have 1.2 acres in Cortlandt Manor.  We need something smaller, fewer big trees.  I have a 4,000 square foot driveway.  It ice’s up, it’s dangerous as all to get out.  My wife needs to be closer to medical care so we found a home in Briarcliff Manor that’s five minutes from Phelps and we have four grandchildren.  By January we’ll have four grandchildren living in New York and New Jersey and we want to be closer.  This is part of our definition of how we want to live our lives.  So there’s another family involved in this, the Swider family.  I’ve met them.  They’re Tom and Roseanne.  They’re out of Brooklyn.  Tom’s a good guy.  I like these people.  He’s a hell of a fella.  I think he’s a salesman of some sort.  Roseanne is an earth mother type.  She loves her dogs.  She’s very anxious to take over our Koi pond.  I had a long conversation with her about how to care for the Koi.  And they’re eager to support Matt and Brett.  Matt is Tom’s nephew.  Matt and Brett and their baby they’re coming and going but they’re here.  I’ll introduce you to them in a few moments.  We’re now in a situation where my wife and I are in boxes. We’ve gone to contract on the purchase of this home in Briarcliff.  We’ve gone to contract on the sale of the home to the Swider’s.  We have a mortgage.  We had to pull a fuel oil tank out of our front yard.  We’ve gone to great lengths to comply with the letter of the law in terms of how to acquit ourselves.  I applied originally to the Code Enforcement, part of the Zoning Board apparatus and then we had to shift over because the Town decided that you will now take requests like this.  So welcome to the hot seat.  We’re not able to get before you for your August meeting so here we are on September 5.  My deadline to buy the new home is September 15th.  Original was August 15 but you have 30 days leeway.  If I don’t close on the purchase of that place by September 15th they can reopen the contract, go to somebody else, negotiate a new price, and pose any conditions he wants.  Moreover, the Swider family’s attorney specified that they wanted a clean re-approval of the C of O for the apartment that’s in our home so that Matt and Brett could live there.  We’re in a jam, a personal jam that if you don’t see fit to re-grant this re-approval of the pre-existing special permit then all of this chain of real estate transactions could be interrupted.  I might not be able to sell, I might not be able to buy.  So it has great consequences to me and my family and also to the Swider family.  So how did we get into this situation?  Carola Mann back in 1990, she went through all the legal processes to convert a downstairs area into an apartment and she devised plans then the Town came in and inspected it after the work was done and issued the Special Permit.  We know that she rented it out multiple times.  I tried to find her but she’s 88 years of age living in Brooklyn now and apparently is very dependent on her children and may not have any memory of this but we know because we still get bills from ConEd for the master home and for the apartment.  The circuitry is set up so that the circuit box is for the master and then for the apartment.  We know that there are many people, at least three or four who rented because we get mail occasionally, misdirected mail but we get mail nonetheless to names that are not associated with any of the owners.  So we know beyond the shadow of a doubt that over the course of about 15 years this was used by people and it was rented out.  Carola Mann also used it as an office.  She was a psychologist so she often used it for that.  There’s no record of the Homeowner’s Association objecting to this or at least not that I’ve seen.  So she sold the place to Maura Barkley and Maura Barkley had it only for a couple of years.  So I’ll guess that Carol Mann had the apartment for 15 to 16 years.  Maura Barkley lived there maybe just two.  We bought it in late 2009 and moved in February of 2010.  Nobody mentioned anything to us about a C of O for the apartment.  We assumed that the whole home had a C of O and we were good to go.  We never bothered to dig into the question because we never wanted to rent it out.  We used the space for children who were visiting or for extra storage or we just used the space.  It wasn’t until the Swider’s attorney and my attorney began negotiating a contract that he discovered that there was a separate C of O for this apartment and moreover, against what you might assume, one might assume, a laymen might assume that if you have received a C of O approval for something that that’s good forever, that’s in good standing for a long period of time but as you know, the laws here in Cortlandt are such that when the person who has won the C of O dies or leaves, that the C of O then is rendered null and void.  And it’s up to the next person to re-appeal for the Special Permit.  No one ever told us this so we had no idea.  Our lawyers, our real estate people, no one had any idea until we were well into negotiation with the Swider lawyer.  The reason I go through this in such painstaking detail is that one allegation has been made by my detractors who are here this evening is that I knowingly marketed this apartment and advertised an illegal apartment, knowing that it was illegal.  This is just flat out not right.  We didn’t know anything about this until we got deeply into the negotiations.  One of the major allegations that my opponents are making tonight is that having this apartment is going to affect the values of the whole Homeowner’s Association, about 40 homes in this area.  None of the people here tonight are our immediate neighbors.  They’re not anywhere near my home.  I would like to say have Matt, come up if you would.  This is the young man who’s going to live in this apartment with his uncle and his aunt.  Matt, just tell us a little bit about what you do and your relationship with your uncle and why this apartment means something to you.

Mr. Matt stated thank you for allowing me to speak this evening.  I’m a current resident of Peekskill.  We’d be moving in with my uncle and aunt.  My uncle is my father’s next oldest brother.  They have been through battling some medical conditions over the past few years, cancer, reoccurring cancer.  They don’t have any kids of their own.  We’re very close with them my wife and I so we are hoping to move in to help them and do whatever we can to make their lives easier as they’re making their way out of Brooklyn and coming up here to Cortlandt.  Right now I work for Indeed.com.  I’m a national accounts manager.  My wife owns her own business.  We will be staying in the area for the foreseeable future.  We really would appreciate having the opportunity to live in Cortlandt and hope we can be a part of your community.

Mr. William Holstein asked any questions?

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked well Bill did you know about the Homeowner’s Association and that this house was part of this development?

Mr. William Holstein responded yes.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and did you have to pay dues or anything?

Mr. William Holstein responded yes, they’re annual dues of $200.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked so you knew you were part of it but they never – but nothing was ever mentioned about this apartment to you?

Mr. William Holstein responded no.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked do you know if there are any other accessory apartments within the Homeowner’s Association?

Mr. William Holstein responded not to my knowledge.  I know there are two other situations where non-related individuals are living with their host.  So Adam West has a fellow by the name Ed living with him for a protracted period of time.  And a high school teacher named Paul has a goateed fellow working for him that works at the Super Food Town as a stock boy.  There are other people living in the community non-related situations.  I don’t know where they charge rent or what the arrangement but there are other people living in homes who are not related to the owners. 

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and when you joined this Homeowner’s Association, when you bought the place, did they give you any kind of rules or regulations to read?

Mr. William Holstein responded there are rules or covenant and there are bylaws.  They’re dating from the 1940s.  They are grossly out of date.  When I was president of the Homeowner’s Association for two years, I wanted to re-write these rules so that we could modernize them, so that we could give them some teeth, so that we could develop into a real functioning organization but I was never able to find any support for that position.  As a result, they are fundamentally vague.  There’s nothing in them about apartments at all.  They were written in a time when the plots of land were being established, homes were being established.  They’re written for no tanneries, no blacksmiths.  They are remarkably out of date and fundamentally vague.  

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked is that the same document that we – I noticed too that there was nothing specific about the apartment in that as well.

Mr. William Holstein stated the president of the Homeowner’s Association’s here, Paul Schneeberger.  Paul, can you stand up?  Paul, the Homeowner’s Association has issued a statement in this issue.  They have said that they stand behind the intent of the original covenant and bylaws.  That’s fundamentally ambivalent.  They’re in a tough position.  Paul, can you come to the podium?  Can you say anything about why it’s such a tough position for you?

Mr. Jim Creighton asked as he’s coming up, I’ll ask you a question.  You said you were the president of the Homeowner’s Association at one point.  

Mr. William Holstein responded yes.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked did you ever bring any actions to have people tear down fences that were higher than three feet tall?

Mr. William Holstein responded no, nobody has been able to create a consensus for action on almost anything.  It’s been almost a completely dysfunctional Homeowner’s Association.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked are there fences in your neighborhood within the 48 houses that have fences taller than three feet?

Mr. William Holstein responded yes, clearly, yes.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked so what happens with the dues?

Mr. William Holstein responded the dues go mostly to pay for our insurance.  We have a lake and so the dues go – we have an annual winter Christmas party, a winter party.  The dues go for repairing the access roads to the lake or certain things that need to get done: drudging the lake, but there’s never been any effort to, never been any successful effort to bring any action against anybody under these rules within the seven and a half years that I’ve lived there.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked can I ask a question before he does come up?  I wanted to just ask whether or not the organization is functional.  Is it…

Mr. William Holstein responded we elect officers and they have meetings and so one of the reasons I stepped down after two years was, Sal sitting here, said to me “we’ve been talking about the same things for two years and nothing’s happened.”  So I said, “that’s it, I have to get out.”  That sort of summarizes the tone of what happens.  They talk about the same things forever and nothing ever happens.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked how often do you have meetings?

Mr. William Holstein responded I’d have to ask Mr. Schneeberger.  I’ve not been invited.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked are they regularly scheduled in some way?

Mr. William Holstein responded Paul can you step up, just a couple of questions?

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked just want to know, are those meetings regularly scheduled?

Mr. Paul Schneeberger responded there’s at least one per quarter if we can get everybody together.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked and the turnout for the meetings?

Mr. Paul Schneeberger responded it depends on who’s available, usually board members, the president, treasurer, secretary.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked so it’s mostly officers that show up?

Mr. Paul Schneeberger responded yes, and when we get a larger issue involved then we invite everybody if we can.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked I have two quick questions.  You mentioned insurance.  Is that just for your board of directors?

Mr. Paul Schneeberger responded no it’s for everybody.

Mr. Robert Foley asked no but I mean it’s for coverage of that, no properties? No lake?

Mr. Paul Schneeberger responded mostly liability insurance for the lake.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and the lake, is that at the end of Brook Lane or – we had a site inspection there a few years ago for another application.

Mr. William Holstein responded no, it’s a circle by Furnace Brook Drive and Furnace Dock Drive.  Furnace Dock Road is on the other side.  It’s not Brook.  It’s on the other side of Furnace Dock Road.
Mr. Robert Foley stated I was trying to recollect if it was where this board had a site visit a few years ago.  Chris, do you remember?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded it’s not a very good aerial.  It doesn’t capture all of it but it’s the body of water at the top of the screen.

Mr. Robert Foley asked you had a dam.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated well the dam impounds water on the other side of Furnace Brook Rd.
Mr. William Holstein asked Paul, one last question, if you an answer this please do.  Have you been threatened with any legal action if you take the wrong position on this matter?

Mr. Paul Schneeberger responded there’s been discussion of that.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked discussion of legal action against…

Mr. William Holstein stated against the board if they take the wrong position regarding my appeal for this Special Permit, the renewal of the Special Permit.  I’d like to make three points and then I’ll sit down.  The one point that my noble opposition is going to bring up is that if this transaction goes through that the values will be fundamentally compromised.  You saw the fine young people here.  They want to make a long term commitment to Cortlandt Manor.  They’re not fly-by-night people.  They’re not going to be having wild parties and have drunks staggering down the street.  So these are people of careers and businesses and children and responsibilities for their loved ones.  That seems to me to be a very, an ideal kind of group of people that’d be living in your community.  They care about each other.  They care about animals.  They care about doing the things that are right.  The second thing that I’d like to rebut, I mentioned earlier that I knowingly marketed this as some sort of an illegal apartment, that I knew that it was illegal.  I had no idea.  I discovered this late in the process as a result of our buyer’s lawyers finding it deep in the bowels someplace of the code that these things expire upon the owner’s passing or moving.  So I had no idea.  The last thing to say is that the Homeowner’s Board, the HOA is not unified in this.  They are not taking an official stand.  You have members here from the Homeowner’s Association who now are going to speak.  I believe in freedom of speech as a writer and author, I would die to defend their right to speak but you do not need to come to the conclusion that what they say about what goes on within the Homeowner’s Association has any bearing on the Town in the Town’s dealings with apartments.  The Town has authority in this situation, a large body of knowledge and code and language about you can have an apartment but you have to live in the rest of the house.  You can’t have two apartments in one structure.  There’s an extensive body of rules that I’ve contrived with all of them.  The Homeowner’s Association has no laws, no rules, no covenance, no nothing when it comes to apartments.  Their language was written long before the very concept of an apartment was introduced in this area.  With those three points, I’ll cede the floor, cede the Chair here and return later with my attorney, Michael Cunningham, to make a final statement.  Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated all right, as I said earlier, this is a public hearing.  If you have comments that you wish to make, please come up, identify yourself please.

Mr. Sal Altavilla introduced himself and stated I live 63 Furnace Brook Drive, Cortlandt Manor.  I’ve lived there at that address for over 35 years.  I’ve been a member, I was a vice president of the board of the property owner’s association.  I became aware of this sometime around the 25th of August that Bill was not only selling the apartment but that he had advertised it as a potential income property.  On August 30th I sent an email to the entire 43 members that live in our community and with your permission I’d like to read that email.  It’s quite short.  Yes?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded yes.

Mr. Sal Altavilla stated “this email is for the entire community and for informational purposes to keep you updated about the current events regarding the sale of the Holstein residence.”  And I want to stop for a minute.  I have the utmost respect for Bill.  He and I worked together for many, many years.  He worked very hard for the community.  I like him and I have the utmost respect for him.  So there’s nothing personal in this.  And this young family that’s here seems extremely nice.  Now let me get back.  “As you may or may not know, the Holstein, 260 Furnace Dock Road is in contract for sale.  Currently the house is a one family although at some point in time it was given temporary approval to rent the lower level.  When the Holstein’s purchased the home, the ability to rent the apartment became null and void as they were not interested in using it as a rental property.  The potential buyer is an attorney who has insisted that the home be sold with the ability to rent an apartment on the lower level to anyone when he so chooses.  Essentially, my thinking is he wants to collect rent as if this was a two-family home.  On September 5th there will be a Town Board meeting at which time this temporary approval comes up for renewal.  I intend to participate at this Town Board meeting where I’d like to represent part of the community.  Please let me know within the next two days your feelings on the subject.  Bill Holstein was a former president of this community who worked very hard for all of us.  With that said, I need to have a consensus as to whether we want this community to stay as single-family homes the way it was intended or give owners the ability to rent additional space to whomever they so choose.  This is important, please respond as the meeting is scheduled for September 5th.”  Two days – I got over 50 emails here from the 43 people that live in our community.  Two days later I sent out the following: “Dear neighbors, my sincere apologies for not getting back to you on an individual basis regarding the email I sent out earlier this week.  I had hoped to respond to each person individually but the response was so overwhelming as it was, I couldn’t keep up with it.  I would like you to know that in every instance, all of the responses except for one exception were opposed to allowing a rental apartment in a one-family community.  I would also like to apologize if my original email was confusing.  I was not and am not speaking for the Board of the Furnace Brook Property Owner’s or rather I am speaking as a 35 year resident who loves our community and does not want it to change.  I would like to state that I am vehemently against allowing a rental apartment in our community.  I have nothing personal to gain from this position.  I am 76 years old and the gradual changes of allowing rental apartments in our community will have no impact on me but I believe it will have serious consequences on all the new families along with their children if we allow this to go through, it will have a negative impact on the future of our community.  If it’s at all possible, please attend the Town Hall meeting on Tuesday, September 5th at 7:00.  Please remember that most importantly we are all neighbors.  We are allowed to have different opinions.  It shouldn’t have an impact on our ability to help one another and get along.”  So I have attached here and I can’t – I would be up here for hours to read all these emails but would the board care for me to give these to you for further consideration at a later time?
Ms. Loretta Taylor responded you can hand them off to staff over here.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you can give those to us.  If you’re done you can give them now.  Whenever you’re done just bring them over. 

Mr. Sal Altavilla stated thank you for your time.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked there are 43 homes and these emails represent how many, what percentage of the homes?

Mr. Sal Altavilla responded as I said I got over 50 responses, but some people sent more than one response.  I went around and I talked to as many people as I could possibly talk to so out of the 43 homes there’s approximately 32 or 33 that are absolutely opposed.  I think Mr. Porr has a signed petition with all the names on it.  The majority of the residents are opposed to this, not because of Bill who’s a nice guy…

Mr. Jim Creighton asked let me say this, are you referring to the rental of the house or the specific purpose of renting a mother-daughter accessory apartment?
Mr. Sal Altavilla stated I have nothing against the mother-daughter arrangement. 

Mr. Jim Creighton stated that’s what this is.

Mr. Sal Altavilla stated I don’t know the legality.  From what I understand – I’m not an attorney.  I don’t know the legality.  I’m afraid of people coming in and homes being rented…

Mr. Jim Creighton asked so you’re against – if he wasn’t able to sell his home and if he wanted to rent the home for a year, you’re against that.

Mr. Sal Altavilla responded no, he can rent the home for a year.  I’m opposed to having renters living in the home that is occupied in a one-family house.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked why would that be worse than somebody renting a house outright, when the owner is there to supervise their investment?  I’m just not sure.  This seemed to be…
Mr. Steven Kessler asked to follow-up on that, so you have no concerns then when one of the 43 homes gets sold as to who they get sold to?

Mr. Sal Altavilla responded I can’t have an impact on something like that.  I don’t have an impact on something like that.  I don’t want my community to change.  I fear a number of one-family homes all of a sudden becoming one-family homes with apartments for rent at a later date.  I don’t know who they’re renting to.  As far as I’m concerned I don’t know how to explain it.  I’m not an attorney.  I don’t do any public speaking.  I feel very awkward up here and very nervous.  But the thought of having a number of homes that will have rental apartments – I see that as changing our community and that’s what I’m vehemently against.

Mr. Steven Kessler asked do you know how many of the other 43 homes have the potential of turning into rentals?

Mr. Sal Altavilla responded no I don’t sir. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated you can’t do that overnight.

Mr. Sal Altavilla stated no I don’t know how many homes have separate entrances and separate apartments downstairs.

Mr. Robert Foley asked do you know if any of those that did the emails, the majority, are all of them owners or is it possible that some of them are renting the whole house?

Mr. Sal Altavilla responded I know of one home owner that doesn’t live in the community.  I know of one home that’s in the Association where the owner doesn’t live in the community. He has the house up for sale.  The Carbone property on Furnace Dock.

Mr. Robert Foley asked but do you know of those homes are rented now?

Mr. Sal Altavilla responded to my knowledge no sir. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I have a clarification I’d like to make.  There appears to be two issues here: one is the Homeowner’s Association issue with the fact that the applicant would like to rent an accessory apartment.  The other is the issue that we have in front of us as a board to decide whether or not this apartment should be authorized given our code requirements and other factors that weigh in on that question.  I see the two are separate issues.  Maybe I’m wrong but I don’t see the Homeowner’s Association – that’s something that has to be dealt with by the applicant and the Homeowner’s Association, yes but I don’t see us getting involved in that into deciding whether the Homeowner’s Association is right or the applicant is right.  Am I incorrect?  Am I off on that?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that would be better for our counsel.
Mr. John Klarl stated a couple of things.  Mr. Bianchi is probably the best person to speak to this on the board since he’s a double dipper, he’s been before the Zoning Board and the Planning Board and he knows the intricacies but this is really a case of first impression tonight on two scores.  Number one, we’ve never had this on our Planning Board agenda.  It’s the first time we’ve had it.  As you know, in the last month the Town Board voted to move the authority for Special Permits and the granting of them from the Zoning Board to the Planning Board.  And the second thing is, in looking at the numbers out there we’ve never seen an analysis of the dimensional requirements, the dimensional limitations and all have to be looked at.  As Mr. Bianchi knows, once again, from the ZBA meetings.  So if someone really wanted to undertake it, like the questions from Mr. Creighton, Mr. Kessler, somebody would have to spend a little time doing some homework. But right now, we have in the code, not put by anyone in this room but by the Town Board of the Town of Cortlandt a certain dimensional requirements to establish accessory apartments by Special Permit.  This is something of new impression, another reason is it’s the first impression is that tonight, this person has been caught between the rock and a hard place.  The one who is applying before the ZBA and his application became the Planning Board application.  We’ve never had that before and we’ll never see that again.  So this is fraught with looking at individual elements of the application rather than looking in one sweeping room.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked Chris, did you check the dimensional…

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded with respect to the dimensional, what’s unique about this is it was applied for, I believe, in 1989 and at the time it was applied for in 1989 I have on the cart really old files which had to be pulled from the Building Department.  They did a complete analysis in 1989.  Billing inspectors went out and inspected it, issued Building Permits, issued a Certificate of Occupancy, I have the intake form that meets all of the dimensional requirements and then I did a site inspection now to confirm that the plans that were approved in 1989 are the same as what’s out there now.  So we did not require an entire new analysis.  We relied on the 1989 analysis but we’re quite confident that it meets all of the dimensional requirement. 

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated so in summary, the accessory apartment, if you just look at the accessory apartment and the code, it meets the Town’s requirements for an accessory apartment.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated it meets the dimensional requirements and then there’s some other requirements.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated parking requirements.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated well at the time, in 1989 it was required they enlarge their parking, their driveway to get a third parking spot in there and our Highway Superintendent actually investigated it and said it was sufficient.  They added the parking space.  There’s another condition that says, obviously accessory apartments need to keep their residential appearance.  So I did submit some photographs.  You really can’t tell from the outside of the house.  It looks just like a side door so there are issues like that.  and then the main issue really, the reason you’re here is what becomes, as Mr. Holstein pointed out is this odd thing that upon a property transfer you lose the Special Permit.
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated and they have to reapply for one.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I would imagine this would happen quite frequently because until you get to a closing, a lot of times this isn’t even going to be found out.  You just assume the accessory apartment runs with the land.  So that’s what you’re faced with now.  But no, I believe with respect to the Special Permit section it meets the requirement.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I just want to make sure that that point is clear.  Because in my personal opinion, the board has a decision to make based on the code requirements not on a Homeowner’s Association whether or not that’s applicable and it obviously is but it’s between a Homeowner Association and the applicant, not with the Planning Board. 

Mr. John Klarl stated if you recall Mr. Bianchi from your years on the Zoning Board, we’ve seen the dimensional analysis that has to be made for each application.  In addition, if you recall the three big issues we used to hear on a renewal: we used to hear about, we’re there any violations?  Had the parking been worked out?  And had there been noise, wild parties?  Those were the three issues that we saw for a renewal.  But if no one filed a declaration, the next person, the title company wouldn’t find it.  If it wasn’t filed by a certain owner, it wasn’t filed.  You’d do the search and, oh nothing here, and they’d say: “oh there was one but we didn’t know about it because it wasn’t filed.”  So you can fall into that hole too. 

Mr. Jim Creighton stated Chris, there was a lot of a talk about a C of O for the separate apartment.  Before 1989 there was a C of O for the entire house correct?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded there was a Certificate of Occupancy, I believe, I found in the file, issued for the accessory apartment.  I believe probably the Swider’s attorney when they were investigating found out that, that CO wouldn’t be good anymore because the Special Permit has rendered the apartment null and void.  I think.  I’m not the expert in Certificates of Occupancy.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated it’s not that the Certificate of Occupancy expires.  In the instance of our Town Code the use of a Specialty Accessory Apartment is by Special Permit so that goes with the ownership of the property.  The apartment doesn’t have to be re-code certified.  It’s still existing as is based upon when it was constructed and when the CO was issued.  So if there was extensive and there are the concerns that some of the residents may have been implying, is if somebody comes another resident of the Homeowner’s Association wanting to construct an accessory apartment or convert a portion of their house, there would be extensive code review.  It would be undertaken by the Department of Code Enforcement.  This is already an existing accessory structure which has a Certificate of Occupancy based upon when it was constructed and met the requirements of the Building Code at that time.  So there’s no need to reanalyze that aspect of the process.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated and then for the purposes of their sale, if they decide that they never wanted the accessory structure, do they need a new CO for the house?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded no.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated they have one already for the entire house.  The house has its Cos.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated if they perform interior renovations that would require structural renovations and requirements of the State Building Code, and Uniform Fire Prevention Code then yes they would file a Building Permit, go through the motions, the process and obtain a new CO but this is no physical construction being taken.

Mr. John Klarl stated let me ask a question.  There’s two different animals: the CO and the Special Permit.  They’re two different things. 

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated yes, the Special Permit runs with ownership, the CO is good until work is done, renovation is filed for.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated so for their closing they have their CO.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated well I’m not an attorney, I haven’t been sitting at any of those closing discussions.  That, I don’t want it on the record that I can guarantee a hundred percent but that’s something they’ve got to take care of accordingly.
Mr. Jim Creighton stated I’m just saying for what they said, if the issue was they need their COs, they have their COs.  What they don’t have is the Special Permit and the Special Permit is why they’re before us.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated well that should be cleared up later because I’m not sure Mr. Holstein was mixing up the words because they definitely need a renewal of a Special Permit which may have an impact on the closing.  I’m not aware of Certificate of Occupancy issues. 

Mr. Robert Porr stated Madame Chairman, I’m a 31 year resident of Furnace Brook Drive.  As Mr. Holstein had pointed out about freedom of speech I proudly wore the uniform of the United States Air Force for 25 years and as an officer in the United States Air Force who’s core values are integrity first, service before self, and excellence in all we do, I stand before you to discuss the issue.  I’m also the past president of the Furnace Brook Homeowner’s Association.  I’d like to articulate to the members here and to administration that this is not an issue regarding the Homeowner’s Association.  Although the Homeowner’s Association has had a 70 plus year history in this community, in the Town of Cortlandt, it was one of the establishing and founding associations in this community.  So all of you who, and all who sit here, are enjoying that pioneer work that the Furnace Brook Homeowner’s Association built here in this town.  This is not an issue about C of Os.  This is not an issue about the Homeowner’s Association.  What’s at issue is article 11: Additional Special Permits Standards and Conditions for Specific Uses, and I’d like to read this, not for the board who are probably very familiar with this code, but so that those who are sitting in the audience understand what the law is.  This is a fundamental issue of, in this particular case, of failure to comply with legislative intent of the law.  The code is very specific.  This is not a renewal.  There does not exist a permit at this time so I wanted to defer to the board and just get clarification on that.  Does, the question, does a permit exist at this moment?
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the way it’s on the agenda, we specifically did not put renewal on the agenda.  It’s for a re-approval.  You could claim it as for an approval.  Sometimes the words get mixed up but we did not call it a renewal it’s a re-approval.

Mr. Robert Porr stated so I think it’s very important that we clarify the words.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated the code was written so that it specifically expires so that every new owners needs to come in and get approved. 

Mr. Robert Porr responded that’s absolutely correct sir.  And so the Special Permit in section 6(a): “a Special Permit for an accessory apartment or any renewal of that Special Permit shall terminate upon the death of the owner, or upon the transfer of title to said premises or upon the owner no longer occupying the premises as his principal residence.”  It further states: “the new owner of the premises shall have to apply.”  The new owner, that would be the next family that’s seeking the purchase who’s part of this deal.  This is a business transaction.  Family’s aside and wonderful but this is a business transaction of over a half a million dollars or more.  This is serious money.  The new owner of the premises shall have to apply to the Zoning Board of Appeals for a Special Permit to continue the accessory apartment.”  So ladies and gentlemen, I ask you, who is the new owner?  The new owner is an irrevocable trust.  If you award a permit to a perpetual entity, you are awarding a perpetual permit.  That’s the first question to answer or solve.  We are adamantly opposed to that issue, adamantly opposed to awarding a permit to an irrevocable trust.  It is – trust don’t die.  They’re established for tax purposes.  In fact, I think Mr. Klarl would agree that there are five states in the United States who are questioning whether or not perpetuity of trust are valid.  There are five states that are questioning whether or not they’re constitutional.  Just because the comment was made earlier, I bring up the constitution, just because these bylaws were written in 1941 by a group of individuals who used to live in Pine Lake and created their own community.  I think the Constitution is an old document as well and yet survives.  Why is this important and why does it survive?  Mr. Holstein claims that the bylaws or restrictions do not address anything current.  Are you familiar with Airbnb?  I think many people are familiar with that business model.  I sent a letter to Mr. Holstein articulating my reasons and I thought tonight he was very forthwith in articulating rebuttal in my points by point that I sent him in advance but what he failed to articulate to you is in the Furnace Brook Homeowner’s Association Covenance or restrictions from 1941 in paragraph E it states: “no building or structure of any kind shall be erected on the premises included in this declaration of restrictions.”  It goes on and on and it is kind of funny when it talks about slaughter houses, blacksmith shops, forgers, factories and furnace but it also states the following, ladies and gentlemen, it says: “or to be used, or any hotel, or boarding, or community house or hospital for the care or treatment of any disease either for persons or animals.” The granting of this, I’ve called it a Variance but Mr. Kehoe is very correct in telling me that this is a Special Permit.  The Carbone house was mentioned just a little while ago. This begins the ball rolling for multi-family homes and that is the fear in this community that that will begin to happen.  Sir.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated you started off saying it’s not a Homeowner’s Association issue and then you just…

Mr. Robert Porr stated I quoted, there are homeowner bylaws that helped establish this.  I follow the rules…

Mr. Steven Kessler asked you now consider it a Homeowner’s Association issue or not?

Mr. Robert Porr responded no sir.  I consider it the rules of the community and what I bought into when I came into the community. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated but your position has nothing to do…

Mr. Robert Porr stated I follow the rules of the Homeowner’s Association and I abide by those rules.  They are not selective. Sir.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated you understand the rules we need to follow.

Mr. Robert Porr stated I understand and that’s why I read the law and that’s why, as I looked at the law I ask you to ask the question, is this an issue?  The law does not address, does not address trust.  Trust are what people put their properties into after the individual purchases but by granting a trust at this juncture, a Special Permit, you are granting one in perpetuity and I challenge that and I would say that that is…

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated I don’t agree with that. 

Mr. Jim Creighton asked are any of the houses in your 43 or 48 homes in the community, are any of them held in trust?

Mr. Robert Porr responded they may be held in trust but they were purchased by an individual and they have not sought a Variance or a Special Permit from you.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated right but the Homeowner’s Association doesn’t take a position as to whether or not…

Mr. Robert Porr stated I’m not representing the Homeowner’s Association.  Sir, I’d have to defer on that I’m not the Homeowner’s Association.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated but you’re quoting from the Homeowner’s Association bylaws.  It’s not a Homeowner’s Association issue but you’re quoting from the Homeowner's Association bylaws.

Mr. Robert Porr stated I’m just giving you the history.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated so to me, it’s a Homeowner’s Association issue.

Mr. Robert Porr stated oh no sir, not at all.  I would disagree.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated if it quacks, it must be a duck.

Mr. Robert Porr stated Mr. Bianchi, I respectfully disagree with you, it’s not a Homeowner’s Association.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated but you’re using the Homeowner’s Association bylaws as the reason why you wouldn’t do it the way they’re doing it.

Mr. Robert Porr stated correct, thank you sir.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated my point about that is, so you’re making judgment based on the Homeowner’s Association bylaws that you’re saying you wouldn’t put up a hotel, or things like that which this isn’t, they’re not even requesting that so nothing specific that they’re requesting is actually in these bylaws.  So it is open to interpretation.

Mr. Robert Porr stated I would disagree with you on that.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated that’s the way you view it but that’s not the way Bill Holstein views it. 

Mr. Robert Porr stated sure, he also mentioned that he did not market this house a legal entity and that it had a permit and it was not being marketed for sale.  May I approach you and show you this was pulled off of the internet on Friday and you can see where two real estate agents, two separate real estate agents identified it as an income property for rental.  This is from Friday.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated it said it had been approved for a legal accessory apartment.

Mr. Robert Porr stated correct, and that it could be used for additional income and for rental.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated so their attorney rightly pointed out they may not unless they receive a Special Permit under our code and that’s why they’re here.

Mr. Robert Porr stated I’m only arguing that those who are requesting this claimed that there are individuals in this community that have stated falsely and I am correcting the record that that is not the case sir. 

Mr. Jim Creighton stated we appreciate that, actually those statements have nothing to do with what we’re here for so why don’t we…

Mr. Robert Porr stated it goes to the credibility of…

Mr. Jim Creighton stated we’re not assessing the credibility, we’re assessing whether the code, whether this fits within the code so we’re trying to get your comment.  If you can address the code and tell us why we should or should not that would be really helpful.

Mr. Robert Porr stated in the code it addresses that “the owner shall have to apply a special permit to continue.  There shall be no renting of rooms in either the accessory apartment” section 11; “there shall be no renting of rooms in accessory apartment or the principal of the building.”  That’s right from the code.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated without the approval.

Mr. Robert Porr asked without who’s approval.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated without the Special Permit.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the way I would read that is you cannot rent out a room in an approved accessory apartment.  It’s like a re-rental of a rental.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated it addresses the section that you read to us that would be a boarding house.  You may not use it as a boarding house. 

Mr. Robert Porr asked is that applicable or not sir?

Mr. Jim Creighton responded no, the code specifically requires that you may not, you cannot do that.  This is simply for an owner who has a problem making – they’re trying to pay their bills to stay in this community so that they can actually have some income stream to help pay their taxes.  That was the intent.  Whether or not you agree or not.  I know the intent of that law and I think in this community…

Mr. Robert Porr asked may I share that with the audience here the purpose of this section is “to allow accessory apartments by Special Permit on single-family property zoning where the single-family dwellings are permitted except where enforceable these covenance prohibit the same.  Development of small rental housing units designed in a particular to meet special housing needs a single persons and couples of low and moderate income both young and old and the relatives of the family’s presently living in the Town of Cortlandt.”  No one’s presently living here.  “Further, it’s the purpose of this section to allow more efficient use of the Town’s stock of dwellings and accessory buildings to provide economic support present resident families with limited income to protect and preserve property values and preserve the character and appearance of single-family neighborhoods.”  I do not, nor do those in the community that I’ve canvassed, see that that will protect our property values.  In fact, we believe that it will devalue it and I beg the question: how does multi-family residences like this, where does it stop?

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated you’re questioning the code.  The code is law and this is what we’re bound by.  So you’re questioning the validity of why it says that in the code.  That’s not why we’re here to question that.  We’re here to ensure that our actions comply with the code.

Mr. Robert Porr stated and so, in the code, there is no reference to trust.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated this issue of trust, there’s no discussion of anything whether a trust or not but if this were to be approved within the trust, when they sell the house, the trust no longer owns that property.

Mr. Robert Porr stated what if the gentleman who’s part of the trust, when he dies, what happens to the Variance?  What happens to the principal owner if the principal owner, if the principal owner dies?  The buyer tomorrow is the trust.  The trust lives so it is conflict with the law. 

Mr. Steven Kessler stated the law doesn’t specify trust or individuals or anything else. 

Mr. Robert Porr stated the law specifies death.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated or transfer of property.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated death or sale.

Mr. Robert Porr asked so does a sale happen in a trust?

Mr. Steven Kessler responded if something, God forbid, happens to them and the estate, or whomever would sell the property then they no longer own it and it moves onto the new buyer.

Mr. Robert Porr stated I simply hold that there’s perpetuity in the decision that you’re about to make.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I don’t know how to answer that.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’re going around, and around, and around and we really need to move on when we have an entire agenda to fill tonight.

Mr. Robert Porr stated one more thing Madam, I also had to Mr. Holstein that there would be reasons, and there would be multiple reasons.  Here are 39 reasons of longstanding community members who are in opposition to the award for the board here, the Planning Board to award this permit.
Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m still not clear what the opposition is.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I don’t either.  I really am confused.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated I’m trying to pinpoint the opposition.  I heard property values but I’ve seen no empirical evidence.  The reality is that at some point in the past people did live in that accessory apartment and nobody, there was no you and cry back then.

Mr. Robert Porr stated no there wasn’t.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated and there were people apparently that were living still in other houses who are not the primary owners, they rent or whatever.  I’m not quite certain where we’re going with this.  We know why we’re here.  I’m not quite sure that you’re here for the same reasons that we’re here.

Mr. Robert Porr stated we’re here to prevent the board from awarding.  Madam, I’m sorry did I say something that was inappropriate?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded no, what I’m saying to you is that we have a charge to abide by the code of this Town.  Sometimes that works for people that come before us and sometimes it doesn’t.  

Mr. Robert Porr asked I guess the other question then would be, who are we awarding this to tonight?  Is it to Mr. Holstein?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded the applicant is the Swider family trust.

Mr. Robert Porr stated but they don’t own the property.  It’s not done until it’s done correct?

Mr. John Klarl stated it’s issued in the name of the owner.  

Mr. Jim Creighton stated they will not get the permit unless they fulfill all the conditions.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated they are the applicant.  And this was obviously thought about.  If Holstein applied for the Special Permit and was given the Special Permit and then went to closing on September 15th and the Swider’s owned it, the Swider’s would need to reapply.  So Mr. Holstein set it up so the applicant is the Swider family trust, therefore when it gets approved they still have to submit the paperwork that’s required in section 345-6(a) and that will be done by the Swider’s and the Special Permit will be issued to them.

Mr. Robert Porr asked and there’ll be a public hearing on that?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded no, that’s tonight.

Mr. John Klarl stated the public hearing can be conducted with the applicant, the owner, the contract vendee or an agent.

Mr. Robert Porr stated it’s troubling that we’re awarding when the code says what it says.  It’s troubling that it seems circumvented.

Mr. John Klarl stated just a couple of things on the irrevocable trust.  You and I know in Westchester today there’s been a bunch of deeds that go into irrevocable trust.  It’s a well used planning used throughout Westchester County so we would see a bunch at the County Clerk’s office today, we’ve seen a bunch of irrevocable trust deeds.  Those irrevocable trust deeds you do receive title, you don’t receive something token.  You actually get a title, number two that title is insured.  You go to a title company, you buy something, you get the irrevocable trust on your deed and sure enough you have title.  The last thing is, it’s not prohibited, when you look at the legislative intent that we talked about, it’s not prohibited to have an irrevocable trust resulting in the Special Permit for the accessory apartment.  So I just want to let you know, which is something that’s often used, it’s not an unusual technique, it is a technique that’s insured by title companies and it’s not prohibited especially by the language of the Special Permit and legislation.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but I think one of the main issue is the idea that the irrevocable trust never ends therefore the Special Permit never ends.  We don’t believe that that’s correct.

Mr. John Klarl stated generally there’s a set lure to the trust, someone who settles the trust and he has beneficiaries and whoever becomes the owner, I think with the change of ownership from that set lure or that beneficiary, there triggers the renewal of the Special Permit.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated from staff perspective, if we found out that a new person bought that house, it would require them to get re-approval of the Special Permit whether it was in trust or not in trust.

Mr. John Klarl stated as a matter of fact, another case of first impression here is I haven’t seen one where we renewed a irrevocable trust, obviously it exists.  I don’t recall one.  Chris can you recall one where we renewed a Special Permit granted to a irrevocable trust.  But I know a lot of people who worked here either actively engaged in the ZORP legislation or spectators and we see what the Town Board wanted to do by virtue of this legislation.  Make parts of homes affordable to young and accessible in small older couples, old or younger.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one other point is in file in 1989 and 1990, as you all know, it took about six months to get the accessory apartment approved.  There are required architectural drawings, there are building inspections, there’s electrical inspections so the idea that all of a sudden everyone is going to be putting accessory apartments in, if they meet the dimensional requirements, they apply for a permit and they go through our lengthy review process, they come to your board and they have a public hearing, they may get a Special Permit, but nothing happens until you go through that.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated correct, and to build on that, the mechanism for a specialty apartment goes against converting a single-family house in multi-family housing.  That was the intent was to control that and that’s why a Special Permit is required in order to create an accessory apartment.  And as Chris was alluding to, it’s a multi-step, and multi-stage process.  

Mr. Robert Porr asked so I guess the question for the board would be what is the stop and when the end?  When do we get to the point where we’re now looking at multi-family homes?  This was zoned as a single-family area.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated it’s not changing.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated it’s definitely not multi-home family homes.

Mr. Robert Porr stated a family member that’s living there in the apartment, it is a multi-family.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated it’s an accessory apartment.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I suppose to the point, if the 25th or 26th, or 27th house in that subdivision was coming in for an accessory apartment I don’t know if we would do anything about it, but we’d say that was odd and it’s reflective of a larger issue but this is one, as far as we know, one house in the neighborhood asking for an accessory apartment.  Not even asking for it, it’s been there for 30 years.  

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated which you’ve not complained about before also.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated and it meets the requirements of the code.

Mr. John Klarl stated but in the inequities of legislation this applicant would probably receive their approval from the Zoning Board.

Mr. Robert Porr stated so it sounds like we’re at a conclusion here.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated well we’re going to let the rest of the public speak.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we’ll take all of those here and I’ll make sure the board…

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody else before Mr. Holstein gets up again?  Is there anybody else who wants to speak on this matter at this particular time?

Mr. Arnold Halpern stated my name is Arnold Halpern, I live at 14 Furnace Brook Drive.  I’m sorry if I’m going to disagree with some of the things that were said here.  I may be – I have trouble hearing from what the board members have been saying here.  I think it’s my hearing.  I owned my property a couple years before the 55 years that I lived there so that property I’ve been paying dues to the Association, the Homeowner’s Association for about 57 years.  The property, Furnace Brook Drive is a horseshoe property that comes on Furnace Brook from Furnace Dock Road and ends on Furnace Dock Road.  The lake -- the Homeowner’s Association includes almost all the property on Furnace Brook Drive and on the west side of Furnace Dock Road that’s between the two parts of Furnace Brook Drive.  I spoke to Chris Kehoe today and he copied the Declaration of Restrictions dated May 26th, 1941 recorded in the office of the County Clerk, Westchester County, Division of Land Records dated August 4th, 1941 in liber 3934 of deeds page 206.  This was recorded by David Grandider who developed this property of Furnace Brook Farms which is now succeeded to Furnace Brook Drive Homeowner’s Association.  What happened in 1941 is now associated with our Homeowner’s Association.  I don’t know if the town attorney was able to see this Declaration of Restrictions yet but Chris has a copy of it.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated yes, we have it.

Mr. Arnold Halpern stated I read where the Furnace Brook Drive home owners must approve in writing any structure built on these properties.  I don’t know if that’s been done previously but it’s recorded there that it had to be done and I believe that these property restrictions supersedes the town approval for the home owners within the boundaries of our association.  I don’t know if that’s true but I believe that. What rules that you make are secondary to our Homeowner’s Association because it’s on our deeds to our property which is recorded in the Town, in the County of Westchester.  The Town Planning Board and other boards in the town should review our restrictions before approving structures in our development.  That means all structures.  I don’t know if that’s feasible or not but that’s what I believe.  That’s all I have to say.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.

Mr. Steve Pavlopoulos stated I let Arnold go first because he’s much wiser than I am.  My name’s Steve Pavlopoulos, I live at 17 Furnace Brook Drive.  We’ve been living in the community for two years now and my objection has nothing to do with this specific sale or family or any personal elements involved.  I’m just seeing this from the perspective of someone who came from Brooklyn, part of the middle class exodus of much of Brooklyn and came up to this community to avoid what I was seeing in my neighborhood in Park Slope which was an abundance of short time visitors and Airbnb people who weren’t part of the neighborhood, weren’t part of the community and over a seven year period, saw a real decline in just the core elements of the community being actual people who live there were mostly renters, but this was taking it to a degree of being extremely short term renters and having this in a trust I feel like it leads to that kind of route if it’s not carefully evaluated.   Thanks.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.  Is there anyone else who wants to speak?

Mr. Michael Cunningham stated hi, good evening, Michael Cunningham here tonight on behalf of Mr. Holstein.  There’s just a few points I want to quickly address.  A few things, regarding the irrevocable trust, as we all know single-family homes all different types of homes are purchased by many different entities: some are purchased by LLC, some are purchased by irrevocable trust.  It doesn’t actually impact what’s in the code in this case.  Marketing the home with the lead stating that there was a permitted accessory apartment, that was done in good faith.  There was absolutely nothing nefarious about that.  We’re here tonight to actually fix this problem so we can sell this house now.  There are valid COs as Mr. Kehoe mentioned before.  Earlier Mr. Holstein was mixing up Special Use Permits and COs.  Also to the point of awarding the approval to the Swider family or irrevocable trust, I know your board all the time awards approvals to contract vendees rather than the actual owner at the time.  So this would be nothing new for your board.  As Mr. Bianchi said, this meets all the criteria in the code.  I could go through it but I think it would be overkill at this point.  And finally I would like to point out because this hasn’t been mentioned that allowing this approval is consistent with the Master Plan.  Policy 3851 of the Master Plan states that “the Town should encourage flexible zoning policies in targeted areas of the Town that allow accessory apartments to be created within existing single-family homes and streamline the process for approving accessory apartments.”  We would ask that your board close the public hearing and vote tonight in favor.  Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.  It’s been kind of a very long session here tonight on this.  I’m wondering if people on the board are ready to take a vote on this. 

Mr. Jim Creighton stated yes.

Mr. Robert Foley asked is there an actual Resolution?  It says here 21-17.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated yes, that’s the Resolution.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated we don’t have it though.

Mr. Robert Foley stated we don’t have it.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated we have to close the public hearing first. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I apologize, the Resolution is a standard recitation of the whereas clauses and then there are only – and I’m sorry, the main condition is to meet the conditions of the Special Permit which are to file the required covenance in the Westchester County Clerk’s office. 

Mr. Jim Creighton asked Chris, are we able to add an additional special -- can we add an additional condition the way we would in most Special Permit situations? There seemed to be concern about extremely short term rentals, like Airbnb.  Is there a way that we can add an additional condition that would restrict and prohibit the use of the property for ultra short term rentals?

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I believe that’s covered by the Special Permit that you cannot rent a room in an existing accessory apartment.  But I guess my question would be if the young couple that was mentioned tonight has great fortune and buys a house and moves away within six months, a new person could move into that accessory apartment.  I don’t know how we would determine how fast is too fast.  

Mr. Jim Creighton stated I think for rental periods less than one month.  I think Airbnb is a daily or weekly rate so any rental couldn’t be on a daily or weekly basis. 

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated I’d have to check but I think it’s already in the code in the table of permitted uses not to allow transient rentals so we have to just check that.  I’m not a hundred percent certain but we can quickly check the zoning code.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair I move that we close the public hearing.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so we closed the public hearing and we are going to approve Resolution.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair we have Resolution 21-17.  Chris, could you read what would be adopted, skip the where clause?

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I think the conditions should also be read since we’ve spent so much time.  Can you read whatever we want to add as well as the conditions you’ve already…
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so the conditions would be, prior to the issuance of the Special Permit the property owner shall file on the subject property a declaration of covenance at the Westchester County Clerk’s office meeting the requirements of section 307-45 6(a)(b)
to the satisfaction of the Director of Technical Services and the Legal Department.  Then I guess for the second -- is there a second condition on your Resolution?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded the applicant advised if any changes – are we on the same thing here?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded yes, keep going.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated the applicant is advised that if any changes are proposed to the existing accessory apartment, a Building Permit may be required from the Division of Code Administration and Enforcement.  And then finally, which I think is a very important thing that almost needs to be put in with any closing document, the applicant is advised that the Special Permit for the accessory apartment will expire at the time of property transfer and the new owner shall have to apply to the Planning Board for a new Special Permit to continue the accessory apartment.  Sometimes I think these things are not on closing or anywhere prominent in the 
closing documents and so people make assumptions, as Mr. Holstein did that everything is okay.  And it really isn’t.  So I kind of think that, I know I’ve said over the years, we need to put more information into documents that are there as a closing or the signing because people make assumptions and they can get into a lot of trouble.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated obviously we have no problem adding that, but what’s going to happen, 15 years from now, that Resolution is going to be – as John points out, it’s best if it’s covered in the title report or deed or drawing or somehow that is really…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated deed is fine but I’m saying a closing document that the new owner is going to receive should contain any information as important as this.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated my understanding John is if it’s a declaration of covenance that’s filed in the County Clerk’s office, the title report would find that.

Mr. John Klarl stated yes, if it’s filed.  If it was not filed, you don’t find it.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so this one would be filed.  It’s mandated that it be filed.

Mr. John Klarl stated this one required be filed before the Special…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated it would be nice that somebody point this out at the table when you’re looking at the person who’s signing off on this document.  Something this important should be said at that signing.  So, yes, you can file anything in these departments and hopefully you get them back in sufficient time to act upon them.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and Mike analyzed the zoning code.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated the Town Zoning Code in table of permitted uses there’s a section regarding single-family residential homes, bed-and-breakfast type facilities so they are or aren’t permitted depending on your zone and it’s listed within the table of permitted uses.  Bed-and-breakfasts which would be considered an Airbnb type use would be under Special Permit if that was the case.  Regarding rentals of units that’s to two more renters or family provided they have a Special Permit for an accessory apartment which is what they’re here for tonight.  So it is covered under our table of permitted uses. 

Mr. Jim Creighton stated so the bed-and-breakfast Special Permit is a separate Special Permit.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated correct.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated they wouldn’t be getting it with this…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated no, it’s separate.  They could not rent a room subset to accessory apartments.

Mr. Robert Foley stated in other words, what Jim mentioned earlier, this would preclude any kind of Airbnb type situation.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we’re saying it’s already covered by our code.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated it’s a separate Special Permit.

Mr. Robert Foley asked and although I didn’t see the Resolution, Loretta, the wording is okay and everything?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded it seems fine to me.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I apologize for that.  I thought that you had that Resolution.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 21-17 with the stated conditions. 

Seconded.

Mr. Robert Foley stated just before I vote on the question, for council, John is this setting – it’s not setting any kind of precedent on a situation like this in the future like one of the gentleman was pointing out?

Mr. John Klarl responded it’s setting a precedent because someone looking at a similar application will say this one is in line so it could be used, yes, in a future application.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated someone could conceivably say that there’s an accessory apartment issued 10 houses over and then they would apply for an accessory apartment but unless they meet the dimensional requirements…

Mr. Robert Foley stated they would have to meet all the requirements.

Mr. John Klarl stated and lots of times your application says, “well the Smith’s family was granted now the Jone’s family should be able to receive that benefit.”  So yes it gets used.  We see it a lot on the Planning Board but more so on the ZBA side.

Mr. Robert Foley asked so the so-called integrity of the neighborhood or of the Homeowner’s Association is in effect protected even though we are about to allow this?

Mr. John Klarl responded we’re going to enforce the code.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated it’s allowing a Special Permit for an accessory apartment.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated we’re not making judgments on the Homeowner’s Association.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated but on the question, the integrity of the neighborhood, if it’s an active neighborhood association that has the right to enforce these covenance and restrictions, then they have the ability to do that outside of this Town.  This is not the venue for them to enforce their covenants and restrictions that are filed.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated they could change the restrictions and covenants to add a whole variety of additional restrictions.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated of course, where they could go after every person in that neighbor who has a fence that’s taller than three feet.  That’s what the restrictions say.

Mr. Robert Foley stated but still maintain some type of control over that so-called quality of life or character of their Homeowner’s Association and neighborhood.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated sure, it’s really important.

Mr. John Klarl stated but at the same time, some of our distinguished attorneys who appeared here tonight could also make the argument that certain areas and certain language of the restrictive covenance should be set aside by a court that takes bringing someone in action in Westchester County Supreme Court to set aside for various reasons. 

With all in favor saying "aye." 
PB 13-16    b.
Public Hearing - Application of Steve Auth, for the property of VS Construction Corp., for Site Development Plan approval and for Steep Slope and Tree Removals permits for an approximately 4,929 sq. ft. building housing bays for car washing, motorcycle washing and oil changes on an approximately 28,000 sq. ft. parcel of property located on the northwest side of Route 9, approximately 1,000 feet north of Annsville Circle, as shown on a 3 page set of drawings entitled “New Carwash for Steven Auth” prepared by John J. Gilchrist, R.A. latest revision dated July 20, 2017.

Mr. John Gilchrist stated Madame Chairwoman I won’t even tell you what comes up on my cell phone when I ask Siri to get in touch with Steve Auth.  It would be embarrassing to us all.  For the benefit of the public, I’ll try to be a little less legalistic about this.  The bottom line about this site is that Mr. Auth is proposed a sustainable carwash facility for a site that has been basically abandoned and underused.  The proposed use is completely consistent with the letter and intent of the Town’s sustainable comprehensive plan Envision Cortlandt that was released about a year and a half ago.  This is our 11th time with the board.  We’ve had 10 different plans produced in response to comments from the board and from staff.  We’re here tonight for the purpose of explaining to the public what the proposed facility is all about.  To make it clear, it’s a 4,500 square foot facility on a site that’s slightly less than an acre in size that was the subject of an approval for a commercial building some years ago but was never pursued following that approval.  The proposed use consists of three self-serve carwash bays, two auto-serve carwash bays, three motorcycle carwash bays, and two oil change bays on the facility.  We’re pretty excited about it and are happy to speak about it being a sustainable project for a number of reasons but the goals that were articulated in the Town’s comprehensive plan emphasizing smart growth, sustainable economic development, energy efficient, ecological harmony.  This proposed use meets all of those set goals.  And specifically, the Annsville Waterfront Sustainability District specifically called for innovation and materials of construction that improves the built environment of the area, promoting economic development that conserves fewer and consumes fewer resources, generates jobs in the Town and provides future economic benefits to the district itself at Annsville and to the Town.  So what we’re here to talk about is the number of ways in which this proposal meets all of those goals and policy directives as set out in the plan.  It conserves water.  It has a minimal carbon footprint.  It uses recycled oil that’s generated on site and off site.  It reuses water over and over again.  It’s a closed loop system.  The primary electricity supply for the facility is going to be solar.  The hundred percent of the heat for the facility and for the water that’s used in the facility is generated by using recycled oil from the facility itself and from some neighboring uses.  It uses an innovative closed loop water recirculation system that supplies over 93% of the water required for each and every carwash on the site.  All the detergents are biodegradable.  The particle separation system is a hydrodynamic system, and it’s completely separate and independent of the water that’s used in the carwash facility so anything that’s flowing off of the site is going to be collected in an entirely different system that separates all of the particles and so will not be contributing in any way to the water runoff from the site.  The applicant is going to seek certification from the Westchester Green Business Association which is something that the Town specifically referenced in the comprehensive plan.  It will create six permanent jobs on site, a number of construction jobs and related jobs associated with the use of the facility and of course it will expand a tax base for a property that generally has not contributed anything specifically for years on that site.  Let me expand on each of those points just a little bit and then I’ll move on to questions about them.  As I mentioned, 93% of the water is reused and that’s because it’s a closed loop system so the water is actually collected in a number of drains on the site, it’s then collected in a retention system, purified in an additional really high-tech system called an AOS system which Todd can explain in greater detail than I can.  In addition to that, the applicant proposes to have rainwater collection systems on the site.  So any of the water that would be normally running off of the building, or running off any part of the upper parts of the driveway will be collected and used for cleaning the cars.  Not something that’s generally used in this kind of a facility, it’s generally done in agriculture but it’s been expanding and is a really a sustainable practice that should be promoted.  The high-pressure, low-volume nozzles in this system provide a really high-quality cleaning without using a lot of water.  It’ll probably use about a tenth of the water that would be used in your driveway if you’re washing your own car which I know the Town has been advancing at a program to articulate specifically that anything that’s used to clean your cars is ending up cleaning your driveway as well.  That’s an important point because anything that runs off of your site ends up draining someplace.  In this case, everything is collected on site and reused.  From a water quality perspective we have apron drains around each one of the bays so that any of the water that would be collecting on the car itself, which is about 6% of the water total that’s used in the carwash system, is collected in the apron drains and goes back into the recirculation system.  There’s no phosphates; there’s no nitrates anyplace in the process.  One of the big things, something that you guys have to deal with all the time is the TMDL limits, not an issue with this carwash facility.  In terms of the small carbon footprint we mentioned earlier the fact that the electric supply is going to be principally from solar, that the heating system will be principally or a hundred percent from the reused oil from the facility, but in addition to that is going to be very energy conservation conscious.  The ceiling in the facilities will be an R48.  The windows will be R21.  Another innovation that’s not been used in any place that carwash systems that we’ve been able to find is actually using, instead of pumps, hydraulic piston pumps that require electric demand to supply the pump system, everything in these facilities is going to be stored above the carwash bays.  So it will actually be nothing more than a simple gravity-fed drain which goes into the high pressured nozzles.  Again, energy conscious, innovation.  It’s the highest standard.  We’ll be setting the standard for carwash facilities in the future.  The same thing is going to be applied for the oil change facilities.  The oil is going to be stored up above and instead of being pumped into the car, it’ll actually be gravity-fed.  In terms of reduced waste, all of the particles from the facility will be collected in each one of the bays.  The bays will be vacuumed, all the particles removed down to a five micron size, will be removed on a weekly basis. Each of the bays will be swept daily.  With that I think that provides a pretty good overview of the project to the benefit of the public.  We would be asking, Madame Chairwoman, that we get a vote to close the public hearing tonight.  In the meantime I’m here to answer any questions you may have or let the next speaker come up.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated this is a public hearing.  Actually do you want to ask the questions first?
Mr. Steven Kessler responded no, we’ll leave it to the public.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated yes I think we should.  Let’s have comments from the public.  If you have to make a comment or address this application in some way, you can come up right now and identify yourself and we’ll hear you out. 

Mr. Steven Barrow stated I’m a member of Local 21.  This project is going to be a big project and it’s going to give plenty of my brothers work so on that note I support it.  It would also be nice to have a place to wash my car where I don’t have to drive 15 - 20 minutes away.  Thank you.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked anyone else?

Ms. Diane Squires stated I work at Camp Smith.  I’ve been there probably eight years and I’ve been talking to all the military soldiers that come in and all the people that work there and everybody thinks it’s a great idea. A lot of the military, the soldiers, they’re young kids, they have beautiful cars.  They just think it’s a great idea. It’s a no-brainer.  It’s just a great idea for them and we have a lot of people up there.  There’s hundreds of kids coming up there.  I just thought I’d let you know.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated tell us your name for the record.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and what do you do at Camp Smith?

Ms. Diane Squires stated I work in management.  There’s a hotel up there.  There’s the barracks and there’s a hotel and I work there and I – receptionist, you know give the keys to the rooms.  There’s 40 rooms up there so we house 120 soldiers at any given time. And that’s just the hotel and then the barracks is another 200 soldiers over there. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated thank you.

Mr. James Gale good evening everybody.  My name is James Gale.  I live locally in a co-op.  I’m definitely in support of the project.  I think this would be a great opportunity for us to have a carwash locally.  Frequently, I drive 15-20 minutes to Fishkill and wash my car up there.  And my cars are my pride and joy and I spend a lot of time in my cars, spend a lot of money in my cars and therefore kind of like to protect my investment.  I think the whole theory of this being eco-friendly facility is a great concept especially for this Town and I fully welcome it for our Town.  Thank you.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked I’ve got a quick question if nobody’s coming up.  Anybody else coming up?  What’s the advantage of having your oil gravity-fed rather than pumped?  You made a comment when you were talking about…

Mr. John Gilchrist stated the piston pump systems that are used typically in the carwash facilities require a lot of electricity.  To the extent that this is going to be gravity-fed, so the water before it comes down to the nozzles in the bays…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated no you mentioned the oil.  The oils is gravity-fed so I was just wondering…

Mr. John Gilchrist stated oil, both.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated they do have to pump it up though.

Mr. John Gilchrist stated it’ll be put up there.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated once and then it’s ready to be used more efficiently. 

Mr. Steve Auth stated the oils, the soaps and the wax then there will be a pump used to pressurize the water but all the product, the heavy product can take a lot of electricity to move the product in the pumps, so to  [inaudible] it will all be gravity-fed so …

Mr. John Gilchrist stated the point I was making Madame is…

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m still trying to get those things to connect in my head.

Mr. John Gilchrist stated the idea here is what will it reduce the electricity demand on the site?  Two percent, maybe three percent but it’s the level to which the thought and planning has gone into doing things in the most sustainable way possible.  In so doing, I don’t want to put words in Todd’s mouth but he’s been doing this for many years.  He said, “wow! That makes a whole lot of sense.  We’re going to start doing this with all of our carwashes.”  That’s really all in my point. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I have to buy into it, accept your word because I don’t know the first thing about pumping oil and all that stuff.  Is there anybody else…

Mr. Jim Creighton asked can you tell us where you are on getting the approvals from Camp Smith to allow their portion of their property for you to have access for building and for your alternative landscaping requests?

Mr. Steve Auth responded Mike had met with Major Chad Clark I believe.  I phoned him and we met on site on Thursday.  He reviewed the site and he was concerned about runoff from Camp Smith.  Obviously the state is worried about liability.  When we went onto the DOT’s property, there are two tremendous drainage swells which catch the water and run it past my property to the north and beyond into Camp Smith’s additional property.  There’s 300 feet of property to the north of me.  All the water is taken to that portion of the property.  He looked at the existing banks and when I construct the walls, there’s minimal disturbance on their property.  I do not need to go on their property with machinery.  All I need to do is back grade into the existing slopes.  I have an engineer.  The surveyor’s going to go out and shoot exact topos this week and then he will forward those topos to the engineer who will redesign the walls.  The walls are nowhere near as high as originally proposed on the plan.  It’s not necessary.  I expect a response back from them as soon as we deliver the plans with the new grading to them.  But they didn’t think it would be a problem.  They actually wrote it was a great idea.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked so they’ll provide you with written authorization?

Mr. Steve Auth responded yes.  I don’t have to go on their property.  I’m able to operate from my property.  It’s just a question once I construct my walls to grade into existing slopes.  I’m not going to disturb their slopes, just grade into their slopes for vegetation purposes and plantings.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated the one thing that was explained is that he’s the local guy and it still has to be approved up in Latham.  It can’t really be approved until you approve it so it’s going to have to be worked out as part of one of the conditions of approval. 

Mr. Steve Auth responded yes.  It’s something that can probably be post-development approval if it’s possible, part of the Resolution.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated the concern is that there’s going to be redesign work to accommodate whatever their approvals are or to accommodate, you were saying, a change in the wall or something.  Basically, we move forward to public hearing because you wanted to move forward to the public hearing but we were a little leery about not having a number of the really critical written approvals from people.  So, if you’re saying Camp Smith has no objections and they are ready to provide that in writing subject to the Commandant’s or the people above’s final say?

Mr. Steve Auth responded yes, that is true.  DEC has also responded that they have – we did a notice of intent and they responded.  I have a copy of the letter here.  I made copies for the board. 

Mr. Robert Foley asked how quick would we get the letter from Major Clark?

Mr. Steve Auth responded probably by the end of next week.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked Mike do you want to add anything to this discussion because we had discussed it at our work session?
Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we had covered it at the last Board meeting when Mr. Auth presented the project and essentially we’re looking at three major items that would have to be addressed prior to obviously, or as conditions to the approving Resolution.  The first being obtainment of a New York State DOT Permit as this construction off of the New York State right-of-way, that would entail two steps: the actual driveway connection and then also any proposed connection to a storm drain system because it is a DOT right-of-way and a DOT drainage.  And that plays into the facility being located within a hundred feet of the Annsville Creek.  The second major concern we had was whether or not a carwash would be considered a hotspot in accordance with the DEC storm water manual.  The manual is not specific as to what they classify as far as size goes, pertaining to hotspots.  They list vehicle cleaning and fuel storage locations, so in this case it would be vehicle cleaning facility.  They list it as a hotspot but they don’t determine what size is considered a hotspot.  So Mr. Auth and his design professionals did reach out to the New York State DEC, their regional rep.  They are falling back on the position that it’s less than an acre of total disturbance, therefore no storm water requirement is required as far as their approvals.  As far as the Town goes, we would still require water quality improvements, which would mean that all non recyclable water, any storm water runoff generated from the roof and/or the paved areas it would not be re-circulated into the washing facility, it would have to be treated and properly disposed of.  In this case, I believe it’s an overflow into the state’s system after it goes through a hydrodynamic separator.  That would be sufficient in regards to Town’s requirements and as well as the DEC’s.  Finally, the third issue, which we just touched upon was the encroachment onto the Camp Smith property and that would be based on the height of the retaining walls, and then how the grading would be required back.  I think it’s  a little premature to say how much encroachment there would be until the walls are actually designed.  We still don’t know the type of a wall that’s being proposed and what the structural requirements would entail but my discussion with Major Clark a few weeks back and then Mr. Auth’s follow up did indicate that they were not opposed to partial encroachment but the process does need to play out so the first in Latham as far as the state goes.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but even before that, the drawings.  The drawings have to be revised.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated so Mr. Auth is moving in the right direction with his application.

Mr. John Gilchrist stated just to be clear on Latham if I’m right Madame Chairwoman, I’ve spoke with the General Council and what the General Council has explained properly so, I just want to give them a heads up that this was coming.  He said, “look, it’s got to go through the local fellows that are on the ground first and then it comes up to us.”  So they’re aware of it.  They know it’s coming.  To your point earlier, it’s a bit of a chicken and an egg.  What we’d be asking for is, let’s make it a condition of approval as you were suggesting Mike, and then once we know that it’s a condition of approval, we’ll do the final engineering which is going to cost money. 

Mr. Jim Creighton stated what we wanted to avoid though is major changes to the site plan after you get to that chicken piece after you’ve had the egg.  It happens and I’m uncomfortable closing a public hearing when people aren’t seeing the actual plan.  If nothing’s going to be changing, all you’re going to need to show is the specs of the wall, that’s different from having to – move things around so that you…

Mr. John Gilchrist stated I think our conversations and your conversations have confirmed that no one’s expecting there to be major redesign here.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated my concern that I had discussed with the board at the work session was if Camp Smith was not approachable and them not wanting encroachment or the surrounding property owners, the walls would have to be brought into the site which may impact traffic circulation which was…
Mr. John Gilchrist stated then it’s an entirely different circumstance.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated if we were to go through I think it would fall predominantly on myself and Chris as the staff’s liaison to the board, if upon the construction details being submitted that there is a substantial change to the site plan then we would all have to be in agreement that you would be brought back to the Planning Board to reopen the public hearing.

Mr. John Gilchrist stated Roger, no complaint.  That’s reasonable and proper.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and you’re still in front of the Zoning Board though right?

Mr. Steve Auth responded correct.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and what’s the status of that?

Mr. Steve Auth responded we’re on September 25th.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s normal.  Depending on when these things wrap up, it’s either a whereas clause where they’ve gotten their variance but that’s not really common anymore, it would be a condition of approval that they get the variance.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated although I think considering all these things that are still outstanding we would prefer to adjourn the public hearing and wait until we get all these things resolved.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated all of the things probably separate from the actual ZBA decision because I think the way we’re working with the ZBA now is it’s the Town policy that they can’t issue the variances until you complete SEQRA.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated that’s fine.  

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I do think, and I had mentioned to Steve, that we would like some more details on the plan, and the wall is one.  I’m not the technical expert like Mike is but usually when we’re approving something like this you get two, three, four, five pages of details that Mike is looking at based…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we should get a standard detail sheet pertaining to a lot of the details that we’re missing such as the retaining walls.  If we have a good understanding of what the potential maximum height would be, I know you had alluded earlier in your discussion that you were getting the topographical survey updated.  So once we got that detail and we’re able to see the maximum height of the walls and some other construction details that are typical, then I think we can close the public hearing.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and the plant list right?  I think with the landscape plan, there’s been so many iterations of the plans I apologize but I don’t know if we actually have the list of plants, where’ they’re going to go, how many of them there are, things like that.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated so considering the complexity, we don’t want to just have a lot of things that are going to happen later after we approve. 

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so I think as a compromise if you’re willing to compromise, in talking with Steve today, that’s it’s two weeks from tomorrow is the deadline for the October meeting.  I know that we had thought about maybe not bringing him back to November, but I’m willing to say to try to get back at the October meeting with all of these additional details to continue the hearing and then hopefully we will be able to close.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we are going to adjourn it to November.  If in fact, he brings all of the  materials that you’re looking and everything is approved and the letters, and this and that, then he can always ask to be put on for…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated no, I think what we would do is we’d adjourn it to October and if we’re not happy with what we’ve gotten, it would stay on the agenda but you would say, “it’s being held over to November.”  Because you can’t adjourn it to November and then in between meetings have us decide to put him on in October.  If you adjourn it to November he’s not coming back until November. 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated okay.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we – I’m sorry. 
Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chair I move that we adjourn this public hearing to October.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 
Mr. John Gilchrist stated thank you.  I appreciate it.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we’ll see you in October and maybe again in November.



*



*
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PUBLIC HEARING (CONTINUED):

PB 1-15      a.
Public Hearing - Application of Montauk Student Transport, LLC, for the property of Worth Properties, LLC for Site Development Plan approval and for Wetland and Tree Removal Permits for a school bus depot with total of 186 parking spaces, a maximum of 91 parking spaces for full and van size buses and 95 parking spaces for passenger vehicles, a fuel storage and dispensing facility and the use of the existing 4,200 sq. ft. garage/office facility and storage barn building for a business office, employee lounge and garage for light service and maintenance located on a 4.98 acre parcel of property at 301 6th Street as shown on a 12 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development Plan for Montauk Student Transport, LLC” prepared by Timothy L. Cronin, III, P.E. latest revision dated June 16, 2017. (TO BE ADJOURNED PENDING FINAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN AND MONTAUK STUDENT TRANSPORT)

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I’m assuming that no one’s here for that.  We are adjourning this to…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated my understanding is that sometime in the next couple of weeks, at least there will be a – maybe draft is not the right word, a memorandum of understanding.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated at the September Town Board meeting, Town Board will vote on a memorandum of understanding which would, as the Town Supervisor had alluded to in the previous Town Board meeting, would effectively relocate the bus garage to a property swap somewhere else in Town on Roa Hook and then the Town Board would just need to evaluate that and approve it at their upcoming September meeting.  Provided that’s done, then the case would close.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated if that’s done then you will get correspondence from the Town Attorney’s office that you would acknowledge at the October, and I think Steve also processes to get something from the applicant withdrawing the application at that time as well.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated Madame Chair I move that we adjourn the public hearing pending the outcome of what the Town…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated September’s Town Board meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 



*



*
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OLD BUSINESS:

PB 2017-5  a.
Application of Mikiko Ino for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit for a museum/art gallery located on an approximately 1 acre parcel of property at 115 7th St. in the hamlet of Verplanck as shown on a 5 page set of drawings entitled “Site Development Plan for Mikiko Ino” prepared by Cronin Engineering, P.E., P.C. latest revision dated August 23, 2017.

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico stated good evening Jim Annicchiarico with Cronin Engineering.  Since the last meeting, we resubmitted the site plans.  We addressed some of the comments that were from the site walk regarding landscaping  We kind of tied up some loose ends, some things that we weren’t able to address in the previous submission.  We added the existing outdoor lighting to the plans.  We think that we’re showing that there’s no spoiler effect onto the adjacent properties.  They are downward, facing shielding lights.  We submitted information about the signage that will be proposed.  It’s basically the same exact lettering that’s on the school right now.  It would just be removed and reworded, basically.  The floor plan for the first and second floor of the school building was submitted.  That was one of the things that was requested by your board.  We believe that now shows you how big the spaces are, what would be proposed in each space and what not.  Parking: we believe now you have information, or enough information to be able to make a decision on allowing us to possibly have less parking than we are required to by the code.  By the code, straight by the code, math numbers, we’re required to have 33 parking spaces.  We have 21 parking spaces.  However we’ve shown 12 spaces, land bank spaces on the property over along 8th Street there to the northeast corner of the property there.  Those would be used for larger events which we have stated would likely only happen twice a year, larger gallery events.
Mr. Chris Kehoe asked and those 12 land bank are on the property correct?

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico responded they are on the property yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated that’s these right here against the wall, against the landscaped fence.

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico responded right.  We’ve also shown the possibility of 9 additional spaces out on 8th Street right along where the guardrail is there.  We don’t think that that would impact any of the neighboring property owner’s parking. We don’t believe anybody parks there right now.  We pretty much think that everybody has their own spaces in front of their homes.  We would also, as we stated at the last meeting, propose to shuttle bus people coming to the events from the train station to the site because we believe that there will be many people coming from the city to the event.  And then the last possibility would be to even have the use of the Broadway public parking as for the events.  They would typically be on a Friday or Saturday night and we believe there would be sufficient parking for those events.  But as I stated, we think that we now have shown that there’s enough parking on space, absolutely for the daily use of the site.  We believe 10 to 15 spaces at most during the daily use of the site.  We also received some comments from the Building Department, which I won’t go through all those but we believe that we’ve addressed all those.  The other thing that has happened since the last meeting was we wrote a letter to the Town Board requesting that they acknowledge the building or the property as historically relevant.  The entire Hamlet of Verplanck is actually deemed that, however staff wanted us to specifically get the Town Board to acknowledge that.  They accepted that letter at the last meeting.  Mike and Chris have – they’d asked them for their recommendation.  Mike and Chris have responded favorably, recommending that they deem it historically relevant.  And what that does, it that allows for the artist and residence aspect in the school building as part of the Special Permit.
Ms. Loretta Taylor asked you know whether they have actually prepared anything at this point?  Do you know whether they prepared any document citing the historical nature of that building?

Mr. Mike Preziosi responded so the Town Board received and filed the request by Cronin’s office to classify this building as historic.  The typical process is it then gets referred back to staff, in this case it would be Chris and myself.  We have since responded back saying that we feel it does meet the criteria in the intent of that section of the code.  The Town Board will then take that recommendation and then pass a Resolution adding this to the historical registry…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we would assume they would do that on September 19th.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated which would mean they would have it in time for…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated absolutely.

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico stated tonight, we would ask that – I’ll be happy to answer any questions that anybody has but tonight we would ask that you schedule a public hearing for the October meeting.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated at our work session we did decide that we would do just that.

Mr. Steven Kessler stated Madame Chairwoman I move that we schedule the public hearing for our October 3rd meeting.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so we will see you next month.

Mr. Jim Annicchiarico stated thank you very much.

PB 2017-12 b.
 Application of TSB Fitness, LLC, for the property of Yorkcon Properties Inc. for amended Site Development Plan approval for an approximately 2,400 sq. ft. outdoor exercise area behind the existing Retro Fitness located in the Kohl’s Shopping Center at 3006 Cortlandt Boulevard as shown on a 6 page set of drawings “Retro Fitness” prepared by Jonathan Hodosh, R.A latest revision dated July 18, 2017. (see prior PB 29-99)

Mr. Peter Daly stated Madame Chair I move that we adopt Resolution 22-17 in favor of granting their application.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 2017-13 c.
 Application of Justin Wingenroth, for the property of Pike Plaza Associates, LLC, for amended Site Development Plan approval for a change of use from an office to a dance studio located at 2050 Cortlandt Boulevard (Pike’s Plaza) as described in a packet, received by the Planning Division on July 19, 2017, and as shown on proposed floor plan prepared by Sherwood & Truitt, LLC dated May 30, 2017. (see prior PB’s 30-95, 14-96, 14-07)

Mr. Robert Foley stated I make a motion that we approve Resolution #23-17.
Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

PB 2017-3   d. Application of VS Construction Corp., for the property of Roa Hook Road Associates, Inc. for Site Development Plan approval and a Special Permit for a Contractor’s Yard for an approximately 3.5 acre parcel of property located on the north side of Roa Hook Road as shown on a drawing entitled “Site Plan” prepared by Ciarcia Engineering, P.C. latest revision dated August 23, 2017.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated good evening Mr. Ciarcia.
Mr. Dan Ciarcia stated good evening.  I guess since we last appeared before you, one of the issues that kept coming up was the whole, the survey and the ownership of the property because they were conflicting issues between the Town tax maps and the boundaries that were depicted.  Since that time, the owner being Roa Hook Associates, did have a survey prepared which Engineering had some issues with.  Some of them I think we can resolve easily but I should just back up a little bit.  One of them actually related to the access to the property.  I think that sort of has a historical note to it in that the property had previously – the property that’s the subject of this application had previously been used by the Town of Cortlandt as its compactor station for disposing of its municipal solid waste.  Prior to doing that, the other piece which Roa Hook Associates acquired back I believe in 1982 was the hill across the street which was the landfill that the Town maintained.  The current grading of the landfill does not allow access to the – well I should say, it allows access but not within the confines of the right-of-way that had been previously mapped.  At the time, the Town operated the compactor station, the Town was using a ramp and a scale that resided on the land of Camp Smith.  And as it stands right now, neither the VS Construction nor Metro North can access their properties, as Metro North actually has gates at the end of Roa Hook Road which they use to access their tracks.  So neither one of those can be accessed within the confines of the map’s right-of-way.  However, as a practical matter the surveyor wasn’t able to locate it but I think there’s an argument to be made that there’s a prescriptive easement and historically everybody’s gone in and out of there.  But, as in one of the earlier applications, I guess what we can do to address that maybe perhaps to speak to the Major in charge of Camp Smith just to make him aware of this.  But, because of the tow of the hill which is the landfill that extends beyond the right-of-way, so the only way to get in there, short of removing a portion of the landfill is to encroach somewhat onto Camp Smith’s property.  Some of the other ones, Mr. Preziosi brought up, is the cross hatched area on the survey and that was really a discrepancy between the tax maps and the survey.  It’s really not shown here but there’s a jog between the New York State property and a narrow strip which runs along the front of Roa Hook Road.  And all this stuff checks out by the deeds that were part of the conveyance from the Town of Cortlandt to Roa Hook Associates.  So as far as the meets and bounds description of what was conveyed, that all checks out.  So the only place – unfortunately the surveyor put disclaimers on it that he’s saying it wasn’t a boundary – it was depicted as pretty close to being accurate but unfortunately there’s a disclaimer saying it’s not a boundary survey.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked so you’re not referring to a new survey, you’re talking about the deed file that says it’s not a boundary survey map?

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded yes.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated ok I thought there might have been one after that.

Mr. Dan Ciarcia stated no, and that sort of agrees with an older map that was prepared I think around the time the conveyance from the Town took place.

Mr. Jim Creighton asked what would it take to have the surveyor do a survey so that it says it’s a survey?

Mr. Dan Ciarcia responded we’re trying to work that out.  I think the one thing that maybe could help is the Town should have a survey, hopefully, of their facility.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we’ll look through our historic records and see what’s it them.
Mr. Dan Ciarcia stated and maybe there’s minutation or some of possession, pipes, rods, or something like that because it was all Town of Cortlandt’s property.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we’ll check our old surveying records that the previous…

Mr. Dan Ciarcia stated maybe you can share that with the surveyor, maybe he can tighten it up a little bit.  What’s depicted now I think is correct in the discrepancies between what the deeds called out and the tax maps.  There may be a little bit of wiggle room but I don’t think that there’s a – at the end of the day, I don’t think we’re going to see a big discrepancy between what’s called out here and what the actual survey will show.

Ms. Loretta Taylor asked is there anybody who has a question?  Do you have any comments that you need to make?

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded I believe we will be, in addition to the survey issue, which is why we want to refer it back and maybe until the survey issue is resolved you can’t do this, but we would like to see more detail with respect to types of vehicles, equipment, more traditional site plan details shown on the drawing.

Mr. Dan Ciarcia stated we kind of showed some of the stuff inside of clouds just because of the nature of the site.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated one of the things that we have to be a hundred percent clear with is that processing and crushing of stone aggregate, recycled C&Ds, recycled asphalt’s not permitted on the site plan so we need notes clearly depicting that on the copy of the site plan as well as what sort of material you’ll be processing as its allowed under the code.  If there’s going to be material stock pile such as top soil, mulch, it’s going to be stored on site, that needs to be more clearly depicted on the plan.  We’re not saying it’s going to be a catch-all of everything that could potentially be there but we need to make sure we’re excluding what’s not allowed which is, again, construction debris, recycled asphalt and then large stone to be used for crushing and processing of aggregate. 

Mr. Dan Ciarcia stated the crusher’s an obvious piece of equipment that you don’t want there but by the nature of the beast is the screening equipment is on a track so it is in a stationary piece of equipment and it tends to move around depending upon where the stockpiles are.  So that’s…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you could add a note to that effect to the plan but I just recall when we were out on the site, there’s a building and there’s trucks parked around it…

Mr. Dan Ciarcia stated and I think we showed a truck parking aerial and a – is that the old one?  No, it’s got the stock pile…

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we just need a little bit more detail Dan pertaining to what’s going to be stored on site, your material, equipment, and such as well as the other comments that are outlined in the previous review memos: location of the well which I believe you show on this plan but the septic.  And again, there’ll be a little bit of back-and-forth between us going through old records to see what we had that we can supply you to assist in the updates to the site plan.

Mr. Dan Ciarcia stated so basically we just give you an update and we’ve got a little bit more homework to do before we return.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated we have decided that we’re going to…

Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair I move that we refer this back to staff for those items that Chris had mentioned.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

Mr. Dan Ciarcia stated thank you.

PB 5-16    e. Application of Appian Way Ventures, LLC for Site Development Plan approval for an existing industrial building located at 260 Madeline Avenue as shown on a 2 page set of drawings entitled “Site Plan Approval. Appian Way Ventures, LLC” prepared by Steven J. Basini, R.A. latest revision dated August 15, 2017 (see prior PB’s 6-09 & 7-14)

Mr. Steven Basini stated good evening.  My name is Steven Basini and I am representing Appian Way Ventures, LLC and the tenants that we’re also going to be discussing tonight moving into the second floor eventually.  This application was presented to you back in June of 2016.  Originally, the intention was to create a snapshot which I think is a term that was used a lot at that meeting and since then, of all the tenant spaces in this building.  Over time, tenants come in and out, the landscape changes within the building, the uses, parking requirements.  So the Board, the Department of Technical Services, the Building Department, the Fire Department, everyone wanted to know who the uses were in there and get a snapshot so that each time something changes we can come back again with a quick approval if required, if allowed.  At that meeting, it was also requested, because there was a vacant space in the second floor that was previously used as a warehouse and previously classified as a warehouse use if an existing tenant could be expanded into there and a permit issued for that expansion in that existing space.  This Board and through the Department of Technical Services again, and the Building Department allowed that to happen.  Thank you very much.  That was process was intended to take about two month’s time.  However, the Health Department records were very incomplete for this property.  There was four septic systems shown, in reality there’s only three on the site and where they go, and what they feed was a little bit of a mystery.  We had to go through water records and survey all of the devices.  We ultimately were issued the permits the beginning of this year or let’s say in the spring of this year.  Construction had commenced.  In that process, the existing tenant decided not to move in anymore.  So we’re here now with an existing Building Permit that the owner is acting upon because the intention is to still complete that space in kind of the way it was designed with some minor modifications for a different tenant.  That different tenant again is an expansion of an existing use in the space.  It is K9 Kindergarten that occupies the space on the ground floor.  What I know from this process though is what we need to do in addition to hopefully revising the permit which is another goal is to submit a renewal to the Building Department to get that space registered under K9 Kindergarten instead of RC Transit and also just make a few partition changes in the plan.  I also understand that we need to complete the application for site approval, get the snapshot approved, and also we need a Special Use Permit for the parking because we are substandard right now on that.  And I have issued a letter to the Board addressing the continuation of this application, also addressing comments that were issued by Mr. Preziosi and Mr. Kehoe back in June and those addressed certain items for parking but also requirements of survey and septic information as well.  So I just wanted to address a couple of those items as well, unless there’s questions so far.
Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked and then your snapshot of where things stand, you have two pending licenses or certifications right?
Mr. Steven Basini responded still pending licenses yes.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated but one is operating.  In the lease it’s listed as current.  Does that mean operating?

Mr. Steven Basini responded some of the spaces have rented not exactly operating in full capacity but they’re rented right now.  They have lease agreements but they’re not exactly in there, equipment’s not in there, things like that.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked so they’re not operating…

Mr. Steven Basini responded this snapshot right here, because the parking still has to be amended and things like that, I think we’ll probably by October when we have the current survey make change again.  Like I said, I’d like to get a full snapshot at that time when the survey and the parking is complete.  Our goal is to, by October, November in this process to the next, each meeting come in with more information to finally have that final snapshot done.  This may change depending on a tenant that may come in or out.  There’s still vacant spaces.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated we just want to make sure everybody’s got a license if they have to that is operated.

Mr. Steven Basini stated yes, licenses are there to be operated.  Any mechanical – I put a note in here about DMV auto repair license guidelines, everybody that requires what they need is licensed, Health Department, K9 Kindergarten has their certificates, everybody’s current.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder stated just clear that up for the next meeting.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated one thing that we found too is K9 Kindergarten is listed as the ground floor and Westchester Rescue Kennels LLC is listed for the second floor.  Is that the same entity?

Mr. Steven Basini responded yes.  It’s a different company but it’s the expansion of the use that I’m talking about.  K9 Kindergarten, what they do is obviously what you know they do, now is they take dogs throughout the day – it’s a kindergarten essentially for training purposes.  They also have an operation in several other locations as a rescue and shelter and adoption, and so they do part of that out of there and what this expansion of this use is.  Lisa here from K9 Kindergarten is present as well as the owner of Appian Way.  She can describe better but it is an expansion of an existing use, yes, it’s K9 Kindergarten’s.
Mr. Chris Kehoe asked would it include overnight accommodations for the dogs?

Mr. Steven Basini responded yes they do that at K9 Kindergarten’s currently as well, yes.  It would be overnight accommodations.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we just also want to clarify that while K9 Kindergarten is an expansion of use, why you’re also here in front of the Board again is because the use is being changed.  The Limousine RJC Taxi was the approved use for the upper level and now you’re moving that into the K9 Kindergarten so while it’s a similar use under state building code which is why the requesting of the change of the permit from one applicant to the other, it’s a change of use under the town code which would necessitate you to be in front of the Planning Board for that tenant space. 

Mr. Steven Basini stated thank you for clarifying that.  And I put in the memo as well, I agree with that.  It also does not change, like Mike mentioned in the New York State Building Code classification is the same and the Health Department as well.  I want to make that point.  There really wouldn’t need to be a new submittal to the Health Department for that application, but thank you, yes.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but I think what we’re leaning towards doing maybe is, we talked about this at the work session is I’m not so sure that the Planning Board wants to replicate what they did with the taxi, meaning continue to review this for the next two, three, four months and pull K9 Kindergarten out and let them go because they pulled the taxi out and let them go back in February or whatever of a year ago…

Mr. Steven Basini responded you say let them go, I don’t understand what you mean.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated meaning that you’ve got approval from the Planning Board for that change of use to occur to operate, to go to Martin Rogers and get all your permits while your overall site plan was pending in front of the Planning Board.  You sort of pulled that out of that application for the taxi and I believe that you’re asking to pull K9 Kindergarten out of this review and have the Planning Board accelerate that because it’s an existing tenant who wants to move into a new space.  I think what we’re leaning towards doing is maybe going to a public hearing and moving this along and wrapping it up.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we need to close out the total application process.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but not pulling K9 Kindergarten out.

Mr. Steven Basini stated I wasn’t looking to accelerate, I’m not sure what you mean – like I was forcing the hand of the board…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated another way of saying it is K9 Kindergarten cannot occupy that second floor until the Planning Board approves the site plan.

Mr. Steven Basini stated okay, that I understand as the brevity of what you said but I want to make sure that I wasn’t forcing anyone’s hand by asking for an acceleration, now I understand what you’re saying.  But the process I guess though what I addressed I believe most of the comments you had in here.  I guess what I’m concerned with is that we have a schedule obviously that they would like to see the business open for and I understand and I appreciate you saying that we want to move this along, accelerate it.  Can I ask what, beyond what I’ve requested here as far as a Special Permit, are there any other issues that may cause a delay in having this approved in October?
Mr. Chris Kehoe responded the Planning Board has to hold a public hearing.

Mr. Steven Basini stated I understand.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated so they schedule a public hearing for October.  I think you did mention though that you are still waiting for…

Mr. Steven Basini stated survey.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated right, so depending on how fast that comes in, that could make them adjourn the public hearing if there’s a problem.  A less likely problem would be dozens of people coming out opposing everything that you’re doing which I doubt is going to happen but they could close the public hearing in October.

Mr. Steven Basini asked can I ask then, is the parking, the way I have outlined it in the Special Permit, because that is an issue going forward, but this Board would need to approve the parking Special Permit for a reduction in parking spaces.  Is that something that would be expected if the site plan proves what I have, is that something that would be expected to be passed or do I face a roadblock on that?  I’m asking.

Mr. Chris Kehoe responded that’s up to the board.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated I guess one of the big questions is if you’re housing dogs there overnight, is there any outdoor kenneling that is anticipated, any dog runs or anything like that so that they can relieve themselves appropriately or whatever and is that going to cut into parking spaces too?

Mr. Steven Basini responded there would be no proposed – there’s already an outdoor facility runs for K9 Kindergarten.  They would be taking from that facility throughout the day.  There would only be 40 to 50 dogs as proposed to go in there right now.  They would be taken throughout the day to be run on those facilities and to get them exercise.  It’s really, I can ask Lisa again to discuss it but it’s always changing.  The population of the dogs are basically there to go back out again.  The idea is to set up the adoption immediately they’re rescued, cared for, and adopted immediately.  So they go in and out.  But those dogs will be taken, yes, on a daily basis, run on the facilities that are already there on site, outdoors and indoors and then put back into this kennel.

Mr. Jeff Rothfeder asked the addition of almost doubling the space doesn’t require additional outdoor space…

Mr. Steven Basini stated no, they utilize what’s there already.  That will not affect the parking because we won’t be adding any facilities and it also really doesn’t affect the parking because this use, just like K9 Kindergarten, the parking is double what they really need and this space would be very similar.
Mr. Chris Kehoe stated but that’s part of what – you’re going to have to get the drawing with your tenants that are there and that you think might be coming in.  It’s hard to get a snapshot because stuff changes so much but at some point, and that point would be September 20th which is the deadline for the October 3rd meeting, you have to have a drawing that shows all of your tenants, all your vacant spaces, how you’ve calculated all of your parking.  And I think you have that now but you indicated that that might change.

Mr. Steven Basini stated I going to make sure that it’s exactly up to date, you’re right.  On that meeting, when we get the survey, it will be exactly up to date for that moment.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you can get that survey and revise the drawing and show the tenants by September 20th for them to hold the public hearing in October.

Mr. Steven Basini stated the tenants are not an issue, it’s the survey and I have to make sure we push it.  I don’t expect it to change, the building, the facilities, the garbage dumps, everything on here is current and up to date, it’s just what I know the Board would like to see is the exact layout of the parking.  There is no striping on the property so it’s really what I have space by town code parking spaces and the line of the gravel, and the top of the slope.  That will all be updated.  The top of the slope and all those locations will be updated and then I will lay out a parking…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated and the Planning Board, I think you were correct, we talked at the work session.  I think you had approved, years ago, an overall site plan and then I think the spray guy came in and the spray guy didn’t end up going there, correct?  But I think there was a site plan where you approved the parking layout.  But then there was a place where some of those parking were taken up by boats and things like that so I think that the Planning Board in the past had said that there was sufficient parking at the site.  Now, obviously you have a slightly different tenant mix so that needs to be shown to them again.

Ms. Loretta Taylor stated I would like to get a sense from you, or the owner, how are these animals being handled over the course of a day?  Any given day, what is going on with the dogs?  I remember when we made the last approval for that paint and the spray we talked about having venting, the venting that would be necessary.  If that person is no longer there, are there any other tenants who have the need to vent whatever it is that they’re handling?  I think it’s very important that those live animals be taken into consideration because it’s not just like housing a car or a little engine.  They’re going to be active.  They have to be moving about.  They can’t just sit in cages all day long and wait for somebody to come.  I’m not getting a sense of how this is being done.  You’re proposing a space I don’t quite see much in the space.

Mr. Steven Basini stated I agree.  I’d love to have Lisa come up and explain it.  I think you’ll hear her passion.

Mr. Jim Creighton stated during the public hearing that would be great.  When we have nursery schools they come and they bring us a list of what their day looks like or whatever, so if you guys could put something together and present it, I think that would be really helpful.

Mr. Steven Basini asked for the public, would the board like to hear a brief summary right now of how it’s operated?

Ms. Loretta Taylor responded very, very brief.  We would prefer a larger or more extensive...

Mr. Jim Creighton stated to benefit the public anyways.

Mr. Steven Basini stated understood, then just briefly to touch a couple of those points is the venting, first of all, I know that there’s sound requirements.  All the windows in there now around that space are being replaced with gliding windows for ventilation, double panel insulated for sound and for efficiency, energy efficiency.  There are separate rooms in there.  There would actually be some isolation rooms and things like that for certain dogs as soon as they come in.  Those will be ventilated individually.  Her operation, and operations that she oversees are benchmarks for what should really be done with a lot of the state’s money and things like that.  So I think you’ll be impassioned to hear what, interested to hear her passion and what she has to say about it, but I agree.  That’ll come forth for the public hearing.  Thank you.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated to that point, maybe is the representative floor plan there that probably should be more detailed.

Mr. Steven Basini stated I have that for the Building Department.  I just wasn’t sure at this point that the Planning Board wanted to see that.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you have to show it to this plan for the public hearing.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated it doesn’t have to be fully dimensioned but just concept that this is going to be a kennel room, this is going to be a waiting room, an isolation room.

Mr. Steven Basini stated absolutely, that’s prepared, again, for the tenant spaces I didn’t see it necessarily, you’re right.

Mr. Robert Foley asked can I ask on the outside plan, the parking.  As I recall it’s kind of a hodge podge there but not macadam and the way you have it sketched in is in and out parking.  You said it doesn’t have to be striped?

Mr. Steven Basini responded there’s some striped spaces along the front of the building but it’s mostly gravel on the perimeter.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated I think a previously approved site plans which never got fully implemented, I think you wanted to see wheel stops at those locations. 

Mr. Robert Foley stated also I was wondering about trailers or anything else coming in.  You mentioned boats or something, that would block a few spots but you appear to have more than enough parking correct?
Mr. Steven Basini responded well, according to the zoning tables we don’t have more than enough parking but as far as the uses in that space, yes we have more than enough parking so I don’t know how to answer that properly but – zoning requires 127 according to the occupancies, we have 104 provided on the site plan I have shown including employee and handicap, but again, the two or three of these major uses in here require 16, 20 spaces and they’re only really utilizing half of them so we have more than enough.  That’s the short answer.

Mr. Robert Foley stated I’m wondering about the control or the governance of the parking.  In other words so the paint…
Mr. Steven Basini responded it hasn’t been an issue because there’s so many spaces available and not enough people to use them.  I assume wheel stops probably would go a long way in demarcating, showing the lines exactly where they are without actually painting on the gravel but there really hasn’t been an issue so far.

Mr. Mike Preziosi stated we can check the Code Enforcement to see if there’s been any complaints pertaining to vehicle spillage on adjoining roads but I don’t believe there has been but I’ll double check.

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated you’re referencing our review memo which is from June of 2016 where we specifically talk about all of the parking and how you’ve calculated the spaces and the delta between what’s needed and what’s there, and that the Planning Board needs to contemplate that to see whether they’re going to issue the parking Special Permit.  So they’ll take that under advisement as part of the public hearing.

Mr. Steven Basini stated correct, and I had addressed the criteria section 307-34.1(b) which you had requested.  I didn’t know if my answers, if there was any issues in your pre-meeting to my answers, if you had any questions or anything, that was what I was curious about but if not…

Mr. Chris Kehoe stated we reserve the right to maybe have questions later but as of now you’re moving towards a public hearing.

Mr. Steven Basini asked ok understood.  Are there any other questions then prior to that?  And again, I can have anyone speak here tonight but I understand it would be more impact at the meeting for the public.

Mr. Thomas A. Bianchi stated Madame Chair I’ll move that we schedule a public hearing for this application for our next meeting on October 3rd.

Seconded with all in favor saying "aye." 

*



*



*
ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Jim Creighton stated Madame Chair it it’s 9:24 p.m. I move that we adjourn.
Ms. Loretta Taylor stated so moved.



*



*



*
Next Meeting: TUESDAY, OCTOBER 3, 2017
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